The' noteworthy fact is that
money was raised to complete
this puilding and to buy off the
‘district, whieh had contributed
toward the school, at a time
when the university was being
boomed..
1825—Public Library and Reading
" Room opened.: “By way of ex-
periment and at some labor and
expense.” Mack and Andrus an-
nounce on May 1, 1825, they
have fitted and furnished a
Reading Room wcontiiguous to
our Book Store.” They express
the hope that it may prove a
place of pleasing and profitable
resort. Shortly after this the
same firth advertise a Circulat-
ing Library. It is learned from
one studiou$ gentleman who was
a boy at this time that the en-
couragement to read and the
quality of books loaned by this
firm, especially by William An-
drus, did much for the intellec-
tnal development of many a boy.
Omne catalogue of books is-pre-
served and includes Secot's ezvl-
iest mnovels, issued aboat this
time. !
wB26—Western Museum and Belle-Let-
tres _Repository. A weekly
paper published by A, P. Sear-
ing & Co. One of the most note-
worthy achievements in Ithaca,
though a luxury which faileg to
pay, as it existed only a few'
Vears. One volume only was
bound and preserved. “By ex-
cluding political aspirities and
inserting literary, scientifig,
humorous and a suitable variety
of other useful amd entertain-
ing matter, in their Toom, the
editor hopes 16 afford instruc-
tion. and Tecreation, and blend-
ing ther pleasure and im-
ment, he trusts to render
the publication acceptable.”

% Beers Almanacs.

1828—Beer’s Almanacs published and
sold by Mack and Andrus. From
1819, for-nearly-a decade, copies
of Southwick’s “Agricultyral Al-
manacs” bear-the Ithaca imprint,
but the actual publication of
almanacs in Ithaca was not till
1828.

1828—Ithaca, and Owego Railroad in-

corpomated.. As is well known,
this was the second railroad

charter granted in the State,

and one, if not the first to carry
passengers and freight. The |
Baltimore and Ohio was opened
only in 1830. We give this from |
The Museum. “Before Dec. 4,
1827, an Ithaca gentleman visit-!
ed Boston to study the Quincey
railway (which was operated by
horses) built to transport gra:n-]
ite from the Quincey quarry for!
Bunker Hill Monument.” This
gemtleman wrote to James Pur
pelly of Owego on the subject of
a road between Ithaca and Owe-|
go. And though Gen. DeWitt'
was heartily interested in the
canal project rather than the
railroad, the majority of the
leading men of this village, be-
lieved the road to he the more
profitable venture. ‘“On.April 2,
1834, at 9 a. m., a train of 49
cars with four carrying passen-
gers to the number of 30 each,
and.the other 45 loaded with salt
. and plaster reached Owego in
three hours exclusive of stops.”
“They Ffurnished an imposing
procession, furnishing perhaps
the finest specimen of railroad
in"the Umion.” Funny little

road, pathetic now it seems with
its old stage coaches drawn by
horses, its quaint first engine|
later introduced, and its incline
. plane. but how progressive the
step was for that day, and how
wmuch labor and money it cost!

The Clinton House, )
1829.—The Clinton House, bnilt by
Henry Ackley, Henry Hibbard
and Jeremiah 8. Beebe, opens
to accommodate the travellers
the railroad would convey tn[
the village. It was advertised

as open in 1829 but not formal-
ly opened until 1831. In the
“New York Statesman” of Nov.
'29 we read, “If anything is
wanting in the rapid grcwth of
our western region, the follow-
ing description of a hctel at
Ithaca would suggest complete
evidence. The Clinton |
now finished will be re
guests in a few weeks.

ments will be surpassed &
if any in the state.” Thef
ket of 1832 after desciibing
the exterior and speaking of
the rcoms ‘“with hot and _cold
water,” recommends the ' cui-
sine. “Nowhere else can" the
traveller and sojourner obtain
the wild and tame of morg ex-
quisite flavour. The woods
and marshes are tributary of
fowl in great abundance, and
fruits are found in equal per-
fection and variety. Of all
tables to enjoy we, recommend
the Clinton House.” What a
contrast between . this hatel,
2 built with the railroad in view,
to the first tavern built by
Luther Geer in 1800, which still
stands at the head of Linun
¢ . street. This afterward became
Simeon DeWitt’'s farm house,
and here his family frequently
apent their summers. |
1829.—The steamboats DeWitt Clin-
ton built in 1829, and that Sira-
eon DeWitt built in 1836 were
.considered marvels of perfez
tion for “splendor and steadi-
ness, “vieing with Hudson riv-
er steamers in every respect.”
In fact for so small a lake thev
were an achievement. The.
were built by Richard Varick
DeWitt, Gen. DeWitt's son
who removed to Ithaca tc man
age them. ¥

!

Bank of Ithaca.

'1830.—The Bank of Ithaca was char-
' tered April, 1830. The real es-
tate owned. by the corpo-ration]
of the Branch Bank was sold!
to the Bank of Ithaca forl
$3,000. The Ithaca Bank or-
ganized with a capital of $200,-|
2 000. The entire stock was tak-|
et -within three days of open-r
ing the books. ‘The building|
awaiting the new and larger
banking establishment was the
. beautiful Colonial building on
the south side of (then)|
Owego street, the enterprise of|
Prst. Geer. It is now occupied
by Atwater’s grocery store.
Here the new cashier, Ancel|
St. John was housed in the up-,
stairs residence and opened his
books 4in the well equipped
banking rooms on the first
floor. ‘It was considered “com-
parable to any bank anywhere
in the state.”

/3

1835—The Tunnel. Mr. Ezra Cornen
came to Ithaca *o fiyd work as
a carpenter in 1828. In ’30 he
Wwas employed by J.' S. Beebe
.10 repairing his flourishing
flour mill on Fall Creek. Dis-
covering young Cornell’s faith-
fulness and mechanical genius,
Mr. Beebe gave him entire
charge of his milling business.
He built for that gentleman a
larger mill and engineered the
work of cutting the since
famous tunnel by which water
was carried to supply the mill
with power. This was worked
out scientifically, an achieve-
ment which brought Mr. Cor-
nell to public notice. He also
built Beebe’s Dam at the head
of Fall Creek gorge.

Tompkins County Bank was
chartered with a capital of
$250,000. This bank was bhuilt
under the mnational bank act
and became the Toempkins
County Nationa] Bank. The
first cashier was Seth H. Mann.
It is due to Robert H. Treman
that the beautiful building in
which it was honsel has been'
s0 well preserved.

1838—The Merchants and Farmers’
Bank was organized ander the
banking law of 1838 with a
capital of $150,000, which was
.equally divided amoneg three
shareholders — Timothy Wil-|
liams, Manwell R. Williams and
Josiah B. Williams. This was
a bank of discount and deposit,
and merged with the First Na-
tional Bank of Ithaca.

1840 (about)—Two residences reveal
what were produced in the
period of the hall in the vil-
lage. “Edgemont,” a hand-
some mansion on the “west side
of South Hill,” was erected by
Hbn. Eben'r Mack, owmer of
the Journal, etec., author of Life
of Gilbert Motier De La Fay-

. ‘ette (1841.) It was a large,

1 pledsant, threestory house,
now rapidly becoming a ruin,
which was once a happy, hospi-
table home, enlivened by five
daughters, some of whom were
married there. (This property
later became one. of Mrs. J. P.

® McGraw’s farms.) t was sur-
rounded. by acres of gardens
and lawns, beautifully kept,
+filled with rare and curious|.
plants. “It was. quite the
Mecca for all lovers of horti-
culture in this part of the state.”
Mack engaged an experienced
“florist-gardener,” an English-
man, whom he discovered
throngh his friend, Mr. Prince
of Flushing, L. I, of nursery
fame. Mack himself spent
hours of each day in indulging
his horticultural taste. Not
being in robust health, he kept
a Dbeautiful Arabian saddle
herse, black “Jack,” to con-
vey him speedily to business
and back to his loved pastime.
One of Mack's daughters was

the wife of Lafayette L. Tre-
man, president of Tompkins
County Bank for many years.
Mack’s youngesi daughter be-
came Mrs. Nathan 8. Hawkins,
the wife of the (now retired)
scholar-merchant.

Eben'r Mack, Stephen Mack,
the early lawyer, and Horace
Mack—three talented brothers
—were prominent in early days.
Horace Mack of the university
business office, who died’ fen




years ago, was the son of the
first named Horace. 'He knew!
and loved the early village as
did no other person and wrote
the history of Ithaca in Land-
marks of Tompkins County,
1894. .

The other residence belongs
to Miss Belle Cowdry, on State |
Street below the infirmary. !
Hon, Jacob . MeCormick built |
it, also the big mill on Six Mile
Creek, opposite (later) Halsey
mills. This fine residence, oc-
cupied by five lively and beau-
tiful daughters and three sons,
was specially. attractive. Mrs.
McCormick (Catherine Con-
rad) was called_ lhe -“Ladv ™ of
the Tguc”..because of her
beauty and charms. She earlier
lived on one of the present Bo-!
gardus farms, near former Dr.
Burdick’'s* water cure, now un-
inhabited.

SECTION TWO

The Hall

Is it not evident, men of enterprise
of the twenfieth century, that 100
vears ago Ithaca was daringly pro-
gressive? Is it not possible that both
conservatives and men with present-
day enthusiasm for enlargement ma.y.l
léarn something now and ever from
Ithaca's notable early past? From
such Dbrains and hands, should we
not be gracious enough to remember,
gprung the village hall of 18437

The 'hall represents Ithaca’s mﬂsir:
intelligent spirit. It represents both
fire protection, intellectual growth,
and wholesome amusement. It con-
nects those early days of the develop-
ing hamlet with the next gen&ratic_&n.
just after the widespread financial
vanic of the late thirties, when the
village wcs almost hopelessly crip-|
pled, and after the bursting of the
Seodus Canal bubble, when fabulous
prices of real estate rose and geu
with amazing rapidity. The building
illustrates the time in village histcry
when heroic efforts wefe made Lo re-
Botabiish manufactories and to ad-
;ust the village to changing transpor-
tation conditions.

Let us go back to the day of the
ledicatory exercises of the hall. We
must ascend the ridiculous steps, and
wend out way through g throng of ha
py people, to the pleasant assembly
roomn, decorated with flowers and ever-
‘greens. There is much happy speech-
ifying. The man presidkng is John
‘James Speed, the President of the Vil-|
lange, who carried the hall into execu-
tion. We listen to his “eloquent ad-/
:rdress. on the Dignity of Labor.” The
little boy in the fromt seat is his son
{who was later killed at the Battle of
Gettysburg.) That is D. D. Spencer.
Esg.., coming ‘forward with the im-
mense map of the Empire State, 16
ft. by 12, the gift of the Town of Lans-,
ing. which they hung on the east wa.lI.\‘
Bteven B. Cushing is returning thanks
to Dr. Burdick of the Water Cure, who |
Tepresents Lansing. Is not Cushing
more eloguent than ever as he praises
'the enterprise and public spirit which
induced the erection of this splendid
huilding?

| 1thaca’s. Famous Poet Lawyer,

" If the voices which resounded in the
hall during its earlier days, were evok-
eid now, they would resound with the
€loquence of William Lynn, who came
to Ithaca in earliest days, and with]|
that of Francis Miles Finch, Ithaca’s
tamous poetlawyer, who was a boy
of only 15 when he attended the open-
iing of the needed building, which min-
isstered to the intellectual, moral and
sowcial life of both men. Lynn was the
son of one of the most distinguished
preachers of his day, and brother-in-
law of Simeon DeWitt. He came to
Ithaca as land agent of DeWitt, also
owened a law office. As a lawyer, he
was not as eminent as some men of
that period. He was a polished writer
and his numerous public addresses

were published and widely circulated.
Tiiey were considered models of log-|
ical force and elegance of diction. He'
was a laborious scholar and life-long
student of historical and classical Iit-
erature. His love of fun and incisive
pem gave a new word to the language,
in his “Roarback” story, which so-
.nearly defeated Polk in 1844. Lynm’s
“T.egan and Commonplace Book” was
consudered a valuable work. Frem 1810
to 1848 he was the orator par excel-
lerce. His lecture on “The Immortal-
ity «.f the Soul as Derived from Nature
and Reason,” was delivered in the wvil-
lage hall, Jamn. 4, 1847.. His later life
was overshdowed, but when Cornell
Library was dedicated, he was alluded
'to by a distinguished speaker thus:
“William Lynn with his omnivorous
‘reading, would -have walked amig the
alcoves as in the society of familiar
friends.” Lynn was the fathy of Mrs.
Henry W. Sage.

| Free Lectures.

| '~ There is preserved a “sked-|

| ule” of Free Lectures for the
People, 18344, the earliest of
which were given in the inade-
quate guarters of the old wood-
en academy, until the opening
of the hall. Among them were
Rev. William S. Walker, of the
Episcopal church in the vil-
lage, a learned Engfishman,
who for many years lived in
the present anmex: Gen. Levi
Hubbell, who married DeWitt’s
daughter, Snsan; Anthony
Schuyler, who married the
daughter of the able lawyer,
Ben Johnson.

1843—In 1843 the closing exercises
of the academy were held
there, and for many years
thereafter. The valedictory of
that first year was given by a
poor lame hoy. His subject
was, “The Importance of Culti-
vating the Faculties of the

Mind so as to Preserve a Just
Balance of the Powers.” The
newspaper though it “a work
of great merit,” and prophesied
for the boy. “a life of useful-|
ness and honor.” This man
was no other than the Hon,
Stephen H. Hammond, one of
Geneva’s most prominent citi-
Zens.

1334—There is preserved a “sked-
the little hall came into exist-l
ence in the period of the!
“Forum” and “Lyceum,” when
“oratorical flights” were popi-
lar. Debates were a form: of
amusement as well as aduca-!
- tion. Many young men owed!
much of their intellectual vigor|
to these debates. Four who;
were great friends were Julea|
Clharles Dewight of Aubuen, |
the historian, Henry B. Daw-

son, George P. Philes, t
bookman, and Stephen B. Han
! mond.

Horace King's Lecture.

Of course we shall all agree.
that the lecture of greatest loc-
al importance, was the one by
Horace King, delivered in the
hall April 5, 1847, on the HBarly
History of Tthaca. King was a
gifted man of great promise,

. who unfortunately died young.

[ Luckily, Mack and Andrus pub-
, lished this lecture at the re-
| - ' quest of the audience and , #n
preserved, it for us. From Sfkis/

‘.. . source .has 'EYEBHI writer of
7 —Farly ithaca drawn much of his
material.  Only recently, we

called upon a lady, who remem-

bered that very lecture and the
enthusiasm created by it. This

same lady also remembers a
lecture on temperance. She re-

calls the thrill she experienced,

when with uplifted hands, he
uttered the closing sentences,

Nor were leczures given by local
men alone., The first distinguished
men who came to the ‘village spoke
in this hall. Among them were
Henry Ward Beecher, Horaece Gree-
ley, Wendell Phillips, Garrett Smith,
Milburn, the blind breacher, who gave
his celebrated lecture on “The Lost
Arts,” and others.

Among the entertainments at the
haI_I of a lighter nature were the
Swiss Bell Ringers, the celebrated
‘Hutchinson Family, who created €en-
thusiasm by- their singing, the Siam-
ese Twins, Tom ™humb and wife,
Commodore Nutt and Minnie War-
ren. Therevwas Bamgard's panorama,
“Pilgrim’s Progress,” and “Uncle
Tom’s Cabin.” Several Shakespear-
€an readers came to the village, |

.' among them one who was hailed
from g nearby township, where he
'Was known as Mr. Jones. He called
‘himself “Count Johannes,” however,
land tosgive this credence +he wore a
tbroad red ribbon across his breast |
land a jeweled decoration of nobility
\conferred upon him-by-some-unhcard
‘of potentate. He,had been an ‘actor
lof some ability and left the boards
Lfor' the legal arena. He became no-
torious in New York and Boston
!when after three 4 trials and the sl
rp_re:me court sustained him in his
I}]gzieg Suits against the Times and
f une for eallin hi
e : .g iIm a bogus
! Kane,the Arctic Explorer
About 1853, Elisha Kent Kane the
lArctic explorer, who had heeﬁ ui'ln
‘search of the:lost{Sir John TFranklin,
'came to lecture. He brought with'
"him two BEscgrimean dogs to advertise
his talk:and tdrove around town with
f%}fm oln topg of . the Clinton Houge
Dus, placing gbetween them -
cake of ice, % 8 Hoge
In 1849 we fread of 4 celebrated |
;ﬁhaaker family twhosgave a concert to
[“a large and espectable” audience,
iShaker segs ind:dances were intro-
ducg:d, evidentl y~to the delight of the
audience, for jthe performance was
“repeated two pther evenings.”




For nearly aj gparter of 2 century’

the village haifl served as the, only
;common centei; for the people—not
moving picture:3, but tableaux vivant,
Ibenefits given Ipy native talent, Bften
/by and for the Mfiremen. Here money
Iwas raised to help build and support
'Mthe churches, arid sometimes even re-I
Jdigious services |were held. Pleasant
festivities there| were in those quiet
~days. 0Old walls lovingly decorated’
| by many hands, with flowers and
with evergreeh, jwith flags and with
tarlatan for mary occasions. To our
fathers, you weile fair and honored.
You served the |commanity well till
Ezra Comnell sazw your bounds were
overflowing and| bestowed Library
Hall in 1863, pr!ior to the giving of
Cornell.

SECTION THREE
c:»qcl-usion.

~ The hospitabl Ithaca of muddy
Toads, with/little jwealth, was not; ex-
actly a “mean cily” in 1868. It was
‘provineial, unprogressive but beauti-
ful for sitmation. 'It -was not flour-
.ishing and up to+«date, like the proud
village of our grandfathers. And the
.regson for-this state.of things is not
,far to seek.

Ithacans from 1850 to 1891 were
educated to<the enjoyment of beauti-
tful, natural surroundings; comfort-
-able homes, were given to hospital-
vity; many of them enjoyed travel
and good reading..But manufacturies
iwere-discouraged. The noise, smoke
,and mixed population consequent to
a mamﬁa.ctunng city were not de-
¢sired.

. There ~were exceptional men; who
jalso loved Ithaca, like Ezra Cornell,
jCharles M. Titus, Edw. S. Esty and
others, whom we could name, who
\saw ]arger possibilities, worked
|against thé current but could not
istem the tide. And so.Ithaca today is
tmore atiractive as a-:residential city
!than several nearby towns, but was
f:l?or many years left in industrial
rswaddling clothes. Our own native
yborn and jusily “honored, Henry W.
| Sage, who was -second father to Cor-
nell, took litfle or mo: interest in city
improvements. His interest, as he
emphatically stated, was limited to
tthe great university. Mr. Sage’s loss
tof thousands. of dollars in an Ithaca
factory may ‘have accounted for his/|
indifferemce. When university affairs:
‘becamermore -absorbing, fthere was for
\jmany years little attention given to
civic improvement. The city was
overshadowed by the university,]

?

much toithe detriment of both.
'~ Ezra Cornell.

- But be.it forever remembered of
tthat great>and good -man, Ezra Cor-
inell, who gave the village a self-sup-

porting library, and hall, with the
same unselfish purpose that he found-
ed the university; be it written, in our
hearts, that from the days when he
fathered the agricultural society, not
many years after coming to Ithaca, to
the last years of his life, with the de-
mands upon him of his great univer-
sity, he never for one moment lost
his Iwely interest in the village he
adepted.

"be held alternately in the Town of

Railroad Development.

The great struggle from Simeon
| DeWitt and Luther Geer down, had
been to render the town more access-
ible, to secure adequate transporta-
tion facilities.

The Owego railroad was a heavy
burden, especially to DeWitt, who
gave much of his fortune to help hold
it. It was sold in 1842 for non-pay-
ment of interest.on the stock previ-
ously isswed by the state. The De-
Witt money (\he died in 1834) it was
that helped provide the rails in place
‘of wooden ones, steam rather than
horses, though- stage coaches con~
tinued several years. When the MNew
York & ¥rie R. R. was opened in
/1849, hope was somewhat revived.
But many Ithacans were dishearten-
ed, and no longer did men work
shoulder to shoulder. And because of
the attitude of many of the leading
citizens, Ithaca no lonzer attracted
progressive business men "with com-
I mercial interest at heart. , Right or
wrong, this state of things was to be
counted upon.

" Now that Ithaca has been regaining
the progressive spirit which was so
marked in the early village days, the
question is, how to combine commer-
cial progress with desirable residen-
tial conditions. This should be a pos-
sibility, not by over-taxation; not by
inconsideration: hut by v.nited effort
and generous cooperatlon The vil-
lage hall will then be renovated and
preserved, that we may treasure the
lessons of early Ithaca: a new muni-
cipal building erected; not in haste

but in the right time. The old hall,

ag it is, and the annex, are disgrace-
ful. But what we have unwisely tol-
erated may have to be tolerated a lit-
|tle longer.” Do we need to forget,
again we ask, the heroism in building
the hall, in urging better conditions?
| Hasten the day when we may afford
'a new municipal building which shall
‘grace the city and be adequate to all
needs. 4

|

Lodge Instituted in 1808

“The petition stated that the
meetings at Spencer were to be
held at the home of John Cantine
and that there were no Masonic
lodges nearer than Owego to the
south and Aurora to the north., It
was further recorded that Scipio
Lodge, 58, of Aurora, recommended
that the petition be granted. The
petition was granted and Worship-
ful Brother Simson of Scipio Lodge
instituted the lodge which was
numbered 169, mnd installed the-
officers on Aug. 4, 1808.

“All of the returns from this
lodge to the Grand Lodge are
dated from Ithaea,” Mr. Vorhis
adds, “as that name had in the
meantime been adopted for the
town. The last return was for the
year 1826, the year the Morgan
trouble broke out. Evidently, like
many other lodges, it went out of
existence.

Included Danby, Caroline

“The Spencer end of this lodge
also possesses interest as Spencer
at that time included the Towns
of Danby and Caroline, so that the
home of John Cantine was in what
was later known as Mott's Corners,
now Brooktondale. General John
Cantine came there from Ulster
County and settled in 1798. Nathan
Beers of Danby, was recorded as a
member.

“The petitioners for Eagle Lodge,
169, were Comfort Butler, John
Robinson, Luther Gere, who built
the Ithaca Hotel in 1809; John
Vrooman, who later built the
Tompkins House; Isaac Cowles,
Nathan Adams, Seymour H. Adams,
Abram J, Whitney and John Can-
tine.”

‘Masonry in Ithaca Area Dates

To 1808, Records szveal

Masonry in Ithaca and vicinity
dates back earlier than any local
records reveal, according to Harry
Stephen Vorhis, chairman of the | V
committee on- publications of the
American Lodge of Research of the

Grand Lodge of New York.

Mr, Vorhis was much interested
in the history of local Masonry in-
cluded in The Journal's anniver-
sary edition on June 1, commemo-
rating the city's 50th birthday, par-
ticularly the allusion to Fidelity
Lodge, 51, as the oldest blue lodge
in the history of Ithaca Masonry.

“T belijeve in the early years of.
the 19th century, Ithaca was known
as Ulysses and before the forma-
tion of Tompkins County was a
part of Seneca County,” M. Vorhis
writes. “In the proceedings of the
Grand Lodge of New York for 1808,
it is recorded that a petition was
presented for a lodge of Masons to

Spencer, Tioga County, and the
Town of Ulysses, Seneca County, to
be named Eagle Lodge.

YOUNG MAN HORSEWHIPPED
From The Journal, Jan. 26, 1882,

“A dressmaker of this village named
Mrs. 8. F. Mathews created quite a sen-
sation on Wednesday, by horsewhipping
a young man named Spence Ostrander.
Mrs. M. charged the young man with
having insulted her daughter who was
fiftteen years old. Ostrander was induced
to go to the apartments of Mrs. M. by a
message purporting to come from the
girl and as soon as he entered the door
was locked and Mrs. Mathews and a
woman named Daily laid on with a couple
of cowhide whips. Ostrander received
several blows about the face before ef-
fecting his escape but was not hurt to any
extent. He denies having given any
cause for the assault and has retained
counsel to carry the matter in to the
courts. Mrs, Mathews says she has good
reason to believe she had good grounds for
her course and only wished she had pun-
ished Ostrander more severely. The
young man left town for a few days but

is now here again and says he is perfectly

willing to meet the issie.”

—_—— e
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iIthaca Vicinity’s
' History Is Shown
In Unusual Names

Rogues Harbor, Pony Hollow, Silent City, |
Goose Pasture, Frosh Alley, Klondike—
Even Podunk — Named for Unusual
Events or Features of Their District—Po-
dunk Brought Apology from Thomas_!-

Ithaca, Mar. 12—Ithaca and Tompkins County rural sec-
tions abound with queer names,

interesting derivations.

Take for instance, Rogues Harbor, in Lansing Township,
about seven miles from Ithaca.
agreed that it got its title from the fact that many years
ago a rough element made the hamlet its headquarters. In
more recent years it became a mecca for pleasure-seekers,
th Rogues Harbor Hotel being one of local society’s favorite
gathering places for dinners and dances. The hotel has since

been closed.
| There is Pony Hollow on the
road between Newfleld and El-
mira. Advices have it that Pony
Hollow was so mnamed because
pony breeding flourished there in
Revolutionary War days.

Podunk in the Trumansbhurg
vicinity is another one. It has
been  greatly  publicized since
Lowell Thomas, radio speaker,
denied that there was any such
place as Podunk. He was quickly
checked, admitted the proof and
made a good-natured retraction.
Podunk consists of but an old
abandoned mill and several dwell-
ings but it's Podunk just the same.
Its oldest Inhabitant says the
name Podunk was derived from
the sound which the old mill wheel
used to make when revolving in
contact with the water. viz: “po-
dunk! po-dunk! po-dunk!”

No Reason for Padlock

Padlock is on the road to Rich-
ford, the community where John
D. Rockefeller was born. How it
was so named remains a mystery.
It hasn't beeh large enough to
warrant any extensive research.

Black- Oak Corners, between
Trumansburg and Mecklenberg, is

| hood after being informed that a
! “terrible brawl”

just that—there’s black oaks
a‘ﬁenty in “them hills.”
Now to 'quirky names in the

city. The “Silent City” is one of

| them. It is located in the extreme
northwestern part, bordering on
the inlet. The legend of its title
concerns its past association with
the police.

The “Silent City” was populated
mainly by squatters who lived on
land for which they paid no
rent. Those were the days of fish
poaching and there were frequent
fights among various factions en-

‘running from Eddy Street to Stew-
lart Avenue.

some of which have highly

Opinions are pretty well

gaged in this e;'nt;arprise. Ha.rc‘:lly
a night elapsed without the police
being summoned to the neighbor-

was in progress.
The police patrol would speed to
the scene only to find everything
“quiet and peaceful” and deep
silence prevailing, where before
pandemonium reigned. Hence was
born the somewhat facetious ap-
pelation, “Silent City.”
Frosh Alley and Klondike

The “Goose Pasture” is the
porthern or Fall Creek section of
the city. So called, old-timers| |
avel, because the present “honk-|
honk” of automobiles was super-|
ceded in bygone days by the honk-
ing of numerous geese which resi-
dents maintained in that neigh-
borhood. .

“Frosh Alley” is a narrow lane

Cornell freshmen in
great numbers formerly roomed
in the Eddy Street vicinity before
the migration toward closer to
the campus began. They used the
lane as a short cut downtown and
it came to be unofficially known
as “Frosh Alley.,”

Ever heard of the “Klondike?”
It's a residential tract off the Cod-
dington road, southeast of the city
limits, No gold was found
there, but so named because two
decades ago there -was a “rush” of
“gquatters” to occupy free land in
the section.

" of his bargain within the year as

 the property on Aug. 27, 1826, to

'of this- ancient deed_reveals the
‘transitory nature of the markers,.
. or monuments,

'many a lawsuit may not have re-
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Travelers Hotel Site of Inn |
For More Than 100 Years

This article, ‘History of the Farm-

ers Hotel or Travelers Hotel, as

It is Now Called,” was prepared

by a member of the DeWitt His-
torical Society.

With the demand for moderniza-
tion of buildings and store fronts
and the slow march of business
westward on State St. or into new
areas adjacent to the blusiness cen-
ter, many old, familiar landmarks

are disappearing one by one. With-|

in an area equal to little more than
an average city block, six such

structures have been completely |

razed within the last two years and,
except for the local historians,
will soon be forgotten. Other build-
ings are gazing out upon the pass-
ing throng through new facades
of modern glass and brick and tile.

On S. Aurora St., Numbers 11!?—I

121, is a building used for many
generations as a tavern, which now
justly prides itself on a new and
attractive modern front. This hos-
telry is known today as the Trav-
elers’ Hotel but, in the memories of
Ithacans that go back to 1895 or
earlier, its original appellation of
the “Farmer's Hotel” still lingers.
It has borne other names too, in
the passing years, as will appear
later in our narrative. This tav-
ern has welcomed travelers' and
played host to countless guests for
well over 100 years.
Land Sold in 1826

The first transfer of land on this
site recorded in the Tompkinsg

County clerk's office, was made by
Samuel Clark and his wife Sarah,
on Feb, 11, 1826. It was then sold ‘
to Henry F. Hinckley for $600 and
embraced an area of one rood and '
10 perches of land. The wording

of the early sur-|
veyors and makes us wonder if!
sulted from their removal, either
intentional or otherwise. This par-
ticular survey began at “a mark
on the south side of the house for-
merly occupied by Amasa Wood-
ruff’ and ran south, then east “to
a small pile of stones in the Six
Mile Creek,” thence north to a
stake and eventually back to the
starting point. A more general
cescription, accompanying the
above, bounds the lot on the north
by a piece of land assigned to Jane
Green for a dam, on the west by |
the line of Zeuler’s location; south
by land formerly owned by Miles
Seymour and east by the center of
the Turnpike Rd.

In later deeds the land is de-
scribed as being “the same prem-
ises formerly occupied by Lewis
Fortner and afterwards of Henry
W. Hinckley, and known as the
“Farmer’s Hotel"” property.”
Wearied of Bargain

Henry W. seems to have wearied

we find it recorded that he sold
Thomas Hance of the Town of
Dryden for exactly the sum that
he had paid for it, namely $600.
As for Lewis Fortner, we can
only surmise that he managed the
tavern for Samuel Clark and later
for Hinckley and Hance. It is in-
teresting to find an account in the
name of Lewis Fortner in an an-
cient account book preserved in |
the files of the DeWitt Historical |

|Society of Tompkins County. This
is one of the account books kept
by James Mulks, one of Ithaca's
pioneer merchants, whose store
. was located at T S. Aurora, St,
. just a few doors north of this old
| hotel. These accounts range from,
! December, 1829, to April, 1830, and
in late March of the latter year
we find that Lewis Fortner pur-
chased of Mulks 35 gallons of
whiskey, 30 gallons of wine and
| some decanters, which may pos-
| sibly indicate supplies for the,
| Farmer's Hotel, as such quantities |
| would hardly be required for a
] family celebration. |
. Thomas Hance must have gone|
| the way of all flesh abont 1845, as
'we find his brother, John, and nu-
merous other heirs, deeding this
same property over to William
. Hinckley and Charles Hinckley,!
both of Ithaca, in that year. The
deed states that Thomas'died in-
testate and without children, but
specific numerous brothers and sis-
ters. The property has been found
listed in the Village Tax List of
1842 and the Assessment Roll of
1847,
Rezeau Owner in 1868

In May of 1868, the Hinckleys
sold the property to Joseph O,
Rezeau of Ithaca. It is probable
that he purchased or built the Na-
tional Hotel, which adjoined his
own on the north, and added more
land. Just when the original
Farmers Hotel was torn down and
replaced by a structure that ex- i

tended the National to cover the

site, we have no record available
| at present. The National seems to
| have lost its identity between 1870
and 1872 as we find it listed only
in the directory of 1869-70, the
entry reading, “Farmer’s Hotel, J.
0. Rezeau, Prop., 8. Aurora St. Na-
tional Hotel, J. O. Rezeau, Prop., 14
S. Aurora St.” The latter is also
listed under hotels as 18 S. Aurora
St., in the same year.

In the directory of 1875 we find
.an advertisement that speaks of it
as the Jones House, George W,
Jones, Prop. It states that, “This
house has recently been repainted
and refitted throughout with new
furniture, and is now in every re-
spect a first class hotel. Hacks to
and from the cars free.

Frees Hotel in 1876

In the directory of 1876 it ap-
pears as the “Frees Hotel,” with
Edmund Ellis as proprietor, and
features “Good Stabling for Horses.
Terms $1.60 per day.” During the
“sixties and seventies the changes
of ownership were so frequent that
we failed to state that the direc-
tories listed A. B. Stamp as pro-
prietor in 1864. Mr. Stamp was
later connected with the Tompkins
House. In 1867, Lucius M. B. Cole-
man is listed as proprietor. About |
1870 there is record of a brief
ownership by A. J. Frees.

From 1878 to 1889 it was called
the Martin House and the pro-
| prietors were successively as fol-
lows: Joseph O. Rezeau, Charles
A. Bush and Thomas Monagan. |
Mr. Bush was later proprietor of
the Clinton House. In 1890-91 the
Conley Brothers were listed as pro-
prietors and it became known as
the Conley Hotel.




| It continued under the Conley
' Management until about 1905 when
J. B. Mpyers became proprietor,
conducting it under the Conley
Name. He was succeeded by B. J.
| Wafer, who ran it from about 1907
to 1910 and was succeeded, in turn,
by H. L. McNamara from about
1911 to 1918,

Second Hand Store )

From 1919 to 1922 it is not ilsted
as a hotel, but seems to have been
occupied by Harry F. Van Keuren,
Who sold second hand goods. In
1923 it appears again as the Con-
ley Hotel, Charles K. Jensen,
Prop. In 1925 it was listed as va-
cant, but reappears in 1926 as the
Aurora ilotel with Benjamin F.
Price as proprietor. It continued
under Mr, Price until 1931 and in
1932 and 1933 Mrs. Elizabeth Price
is listed as proprietor. From 1934
to 1936, under the name of Aurora |
Hotel. It was managed by George
B. Denniston and Glenn L. Updike.

In 1938 it assumed the name of
Traveler's Hotel, which it bears up
to the present time. With the re-
modeling which it has undergone
and its very attractive new front
it bids fair to attract patronage
for many years to come. The pres-
ent proprietor is Harry E. Potter
and the modern numbering is 119-
21 S. Aurora St.

THaca Jeurnal
Dec. D \VA)

The Dumond Familes
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thaca’s Reputed First Settlers Were Peter Hinepaugh
and Isaac Dumond, Settling Here in 1788

Tinhaca Journal March 1935

ne five years ago certain errors were made in giving a sketch of
beginnings of Ithacan history and though they did not materially
:ct the values in the subsequent series of events still they war-
it correction, These errors were largely due at that time to the
parity in th narrative then available. Recently much more material
; come to hand so that the story as given here; as amended, is
nearly correct as it is possible to make it after this lapse of
events of nearly a century and a half.

By DR. LUZERNE COVILIE

RIEFLY stated, it was in the,
B spring of 1788, for the nights
were still uncomfortably cool, that
| Robert McDowell and seven others
started from Kingston, Pennsyl-
vania, on a tour of the wild lands
that lay in the lake country about
the heads of Seneca and Cayuga
lakes. The exploring company was
made up in the main of officers/
and soldiers of the Revolutionary
War. Four were in horses and
four afoot. They started out along
the old Sullivan trail from Che-
mung and spent their first night
at Kathrene's Town (Montour)
jand pushed on past the head of
Seneca Lake to Peach Orchard
(Hector). They there turned east]
(and picking up the head waters
of the Halsey Creek (Taughan-l
nock) followed to its mouth a.tl
'Goodwin's (Taughannock) Point.|

| Wyoming and

‘at the log cabin' (near to Puff's

Camping there upon Cayuga Lake!
for the night, they started south
the next day, keeping well to the
high ground and thereby avoeiding
the deep cross ravines and gullies.
They emerged from the forest trail
at last, upon a shoulder high up
above the lake corner.

There below, spread out in the
morning sunshine, lay the great
flats extending for miles, covered |
with grass and nearly treeless, fill-
ing the whole valley's bottom and
framed by the darker green if
the oaks and pines of the sturdy
forest growth. Across to the east
was the *‘great falls,” pouring its
flood of water into the creek be-
low  Midway the wvalley ran the
inlet, and about a mile up, where
a branch from the each joined Iit,
they found a fording place.

Camped at Battermilk

They explored the lands and
streams on the east and south
sides of the walley and finally

made their camp for the night
under a tree at the falls three
miles south (Buttermilk) “to |
avoid as far as possible the multi-|
tude of gnats that infested the
place.” They spent three more
days here, mainly investigating the
reaches ahove the flats. They then
left for home via Cayuta Lake
and Kathrene's, having met only
the two men at Peach Orchgrd
and the two at Kathrene's. They
were absent about 10 days.

In the late June or early July
of the same year, 1788, McDowell
returned here with five com-
panions, equipped with flour from;
corn-meal from
Tioga Mill, with ropes anfd imple-
ments, horses and two cbws, and
proceeded to cut and cure hay.
The wild grass was lush and they
were able in about six weeks to
“sweep"” and stack upon the high
ground from both sides of the
inlet some 60 or more tons of hay,
railed against depredation and
stacked for us in winter feeding
of the cattle that they proposed
to drive in that fall. While at
the haying they were joined by
two men, Peter IMinepaugh and
Isaac Dumond, part of a scouting
party of 11 men who had come
from Kingston, N. Y. with two
Delaware Indians as guides,

Returned to Chemung

These people all returned to the
Esopus after a month's ahbsence
without making any choice of
land. The McDowell party went
hack to Chemung in August but
sent back three of their number
in October with 70 head of horses
and cattle for wintering here.
They built a long ecabin and
szhelters for the cattle on the high
aronnd at the head of the flats,
some three miles up the wvalley.

Of their number two returned to
Chemung in February in two feet
of snow on snowshoes made for]
them by Peter Hinepaugh, On
the way thev broke their compass
and were lost in a blizzard and
freeze near Cayuta Lake for five
days, without food, but were finally
ahle to find the way downstream
to Shepard’'s and out. After an
absence of six weelks these two
returned from their home visit to
spend 'the rest of the winter here

tavern).

P

The Delaware people, Dumond
and TFinepaugh, returned here in
Necemhber or January presumahly
determined to make their homes
upon these Cayuga flats, and
erected two or three eahins, that
of Hinepanugh being upon the high
Jand at the Mill Creek (Casca-
dilla), that of the TYaples' upon
the foot of the hill just south of
the creelk, and the Dumonds' still
farther south mear Six-Mile Creelk.
Thev later in the spring planted

their eorn and their ecrops of
wheat, ryve, barley and peas on
their share of the old Indian

(eorn) fields, long since abandoned.
And then leaving behind them a
voung hrother, John Yaple. an
unmarried man. to guard their
nroperty thev returned for their
families at Cook House and Paka-
talkan on the Pepacton.

Brought Daunghter Here

Tn the spring of 1789 Richard
AeTinwell, in later years spoken of
and addressed as Squire MeDowell,
cam= here in company with his
daughter.., Jane. aged eight. to-
zether with a white lad of 12 yvears
and a Nrgro hav. Putting up
temporarily a bark eabin, Indian-
fazhioned, he planted on the old
Indian fields his corn and sowed
his spring wheat and huilt a2 Tog
cabin (traditionally upon the prop-
erty that is now 114 West Buffalo
Street) thereby establishing his
plantations on the site of or near
the old court house. Later in the
season he removed here hi= family
from Chemung, comprising his

wife, Margaret, three daughters and
ltwo sons. He erected the further

farm buijdings needed and that fall |
gathered his first crops.

Peter Dumond of Hurley, (IV),
‘son of Igenas (ITT), son of Jan
‘Baptiste (II), son of Wallerand
(Wolron) Dumond (I), was born
in or about 1730. The earliest of
the Dumond ancestry here was a
certain Wallerand DuMond, a Hu-
guenot, who at Wildtwick (Kings-
ton, N. Y.) in 1664, married (Mar-
gret) Hendricks, the widow of
Jans Arentsen from Wie, mnear
Zwolle, in Swtzerland. The wife of
Jan Baptiste DuMond was Neeltje |
Van Veghten, whose grandfather|
came here in 1636 with his wife,
children and 12 servants, The wife
of Igenas DuMond was Catharine
Schuyler, whose ancestry runs back
two generations to David Schuyler,
a brother of Colonel Philip Schuy-
ler of colonial Albany, and to the
aristocratic Ver Plancks of New
Amsterdam.

Peter DuMond (IV) together
with his brother Harmonus Du-
' Mond and two other men, Johannes
iVan Wagenen and Hen-
|dricks, formed an exploring party
up the Delaware valley in the, fall
of 1762 and spring of 1763 and lo-
cated in the Indian settlement of
Paghatakan (Arkville) where they
each purchased farms. These four
pioneer families were the first per-
manent colony on the east branch
of the Delaware River.

Married in 1572

Pseter DuMond married in :-_‘ﬂap-I
tember, 1752, Maria Van Wagenen
of Kingston, by whom he had six
children born at Hurley and bap-
|tized at Kingston. Four of these
Ichilﬂirwn comprise “the early Dutch
settlers of Ithaca.” In that year
of 1789, Catharine, the oldest
daughter, married to Peter Hine-
paugh, was 35 years of age and hadl
five children, the oldest of whoml
was 12 years of age. Isaac Du-
Mond, aged 31 yearss, had married
in 1784 Sallie Barrows (Berro) of
Hurley and had three children.
Mond, aged 31 years, had married




Jacob Yaple and had three chil-
dren. John, 26, married in July,
1789, Jane Barrows (Berro) just
hefore leaving Paghatakan. There
remained on the farm the sons,
Igenas, aged 36, and Jacobus,
aged 28, where their descendants
still remain.

Hinepaw was an older half
brother of the Yaples. The name
of the mother was Susannah Cisco
and it is recorded that she was born
in Holland. Her early home in
America may have been near
Kingston as the name is not un-
common there. She married about’
1758 Henry Yaple and they had at
least three sons, all born in what
is now Lebanon County, Pa. It is
also a curious thing that in 1795
Hinepaugh is signing his name to
documents in good clear German-
English script as Pieder Heimbach., '

i

F ALL those who migrated to

their new lake home, John
Yaple alone remained unmarried
and it was not until several years
later that he returned to Ulster
County and was married to Rachel
De Pue (de Pui, De Puy, Depew)
in all probability a third cousin
of Robert McDowell of Kingston,
Pa. Their lines of lineage began
to diverge in 1703 and the cousins
in all probability had not met
previously for over b0 years.

In preparation for this much

Nineteen long days were con-
sumed on the 80-mile trail from
Owego, mainly spent in the lost
labor of clearing the trail that
the Iroquois had neglected. Just
how difficult was this trail may
be judged from the fact that when
the Snyders came over it in 1802
from Oxford, N. J., to Dryden, 165
miles, they consumed only 18 days,
and the Snyders were 32 persons,

planned migration there was a
baptism at the Dutch church at|
Kingston of Jacob Yaple's son
Peter on July 19 (born the pre-
ceding Mar. 18) and a baptism on
the following day of Jenny, the
| young daughter of Isaac DuMond. |
These events were also enhanced
on the 19th by the publishing of
the banns of the forthcoming mar-
‘riage of John DuMond and Jane
Barrows (Berro).

It was a courageous as well as
a heartbreaking work that the
DuMonds had undertaken, to move
_their families and all their be-
longings in the summer time a
full hundred miles through a dense
wilderness to a home in the new
West. The first of the trip was
made down the Pepacton (Dela-
ware, East Branch).

Fortunately, in that day, all
streams ran full, In all probabil-
ity the use of the Durham boat
was not available, coming as it
did from its source in the lower
Delaware.  And so the adults by
canoa paddled the children, or
rafted them, while along shore
the patient oxen and horse drew
or carried in panniers their vary-
ing share of tools and household
| effects, .

10-Mile Portage Made

Some 30 miles down stream the
Pepacton is joined by its western
or Mohawk branch (at Hancock)
and it was there that the 10-mile
portage was made overland to the
Susquehanna. Canoes again, and
rafts, for the 30-odd miles down
'the broad Susquehanna to Owego.
| The trall was more open now,
along the broad river. The sturdy
oxen did well until they turned
north beyond Owego; along the
West Owego Creek (near Speeds-
| ville) Dbottoms they were fre-
' quently mired and the forest was
very dense,

(It is recorded by Moravian
missionaries on their way to
Onondaga a half century earlier
that they found the trail here
| very hard to find and follow, so
dense was the forest and the In-
tense shade from the tall tree
tops.)

six wagons, 18 horses, five yoke
| of oxen, 25 cows, belled. At last
:toward the end of September they
arrived at the flats, with their
waiting crops and cabins.

| Tervitory Surveyed

| After the treaty between the
whites and the Cayugas held at
'Fort Stanwix (Rome, N. Y),
| wherein the Indians relinquished
| their title forever to these their
lands, the surveyor-general of the
state, Gen. Simeon DeWitt, sent
| In so many working squadrons that
'all the land of this military. town-
ship was surveyed and parcelled
'into quarter-mile, half-mile and
square-mile lots, ready for dis-
| tribution to her Revolutionary sol-
| diery in lieu of salary long over-
due. It was a large tract, extend-
ing from the Twenty Towns (Cort-
land County west border) to the
Massachusetts’ Pre-emption (Ge-
neva) line, from Tioga County to
the Lake (Ontario). Finally these
|lots were distributed - by lot
(ballot).

Now, it is known that of those
serving: in the war were (Peter
|DuMond, the father, and his tWwo
'sons, Isaac and John, also Peter
Hympaugh and Jacob Yaple, all
serving under Col, Albert Pauling,
Ulster County Levies. None of
these seem to have been allotted,
nor to have acquired any land,
save only Hinepaw, who was con-
siderable of a “Yankee” in his
various dealings, He bought of
MecDowell the Mill Creek property,
150 acres, in January, 1794, and
sold it 1n December, 1795, to
Abraham Markel at g net gain of
100 pounds on the bargain,

Began Active Trading

was a recent arrival from Kings-
ton, who proceeded in trade with
such activity that the little com-
munity was known by his name
(Mericle’s Flats). In 1800 he built
the first frame house, which was
used as a store, a dwelling, an inn,
and is even now standing on its
original site ahd used as a dwelling,

were here but a few dozen houses
vet it continued to be Merkel's

“Sodom,"” Cayuga City or DeWitt's
Ithaca,
Hinepaugh was evidently the first

‘‘collective bargainer” in the little
settlement. Almost on his arrival
his oxen were lost and were re-
covered after many days in the
woods of Milton (Lansing), still
yoked, 10 miles away. All the early
seitlers were in right only squat-

ters, It was late in 1793 that Me- |
Dowell was able to purchase from |

Jeremiah Van Rensselaer of Albany
lot 94, comprising 600 acres, one
half mile wide and two miles from
Innrth to south, and constituting the
eastern third of the present Ithaca,
Even after this purchase the set-
tlers continued to use adjoining
property, as instance “Hinepaw's
Medew Lot,"” a part of the Blood-
good Tract lying westward, This
"“Medow Lot,”” centered around
what is now Farm and Cayuga
Streets,

This Markel, 26 years of age,,

At the turn of the century there

Flats long before it was known as’

| The location survey was made in
1798 since-the ‘“Location” of the
Bloodgood Tract was made and
filed by Martinus Zielly of Scho-
harie on Nov. 5 and the deed of
the 14 acre tract was recorded by
Abraham Bloodgood Nov. 17 fol-
lowing. This constitutes the west-
ern two-thirds of Ithaca. Tioga
county was erected in 1791, In that
year there was appointed by the
Couneil of Appointment, “at the
head of Cayuga Lake, Tioga county, |
Robert McDowell, Captain, Peter
Hinepaugh, Lieutenant, and Isaac
"Dumond, Ensign.” And this was
twa years earlier than the creation
‘of the state militia. These officers |
were named as part of Major
Butt’s Battalion, David Holbrook, |
Surgeon.
Appointment Recorded
The first entry in the old Minute
Book, Town of Ulysses, reads—*"At
the Annual Town meeting held on
Tuesday the Tth of April at the
- - —— =

[

home of Peter Hympough in Ulys-
ses, agreeable to published notice
given for that purpose, The ap-
pointment follows.” Hympough and
Peter Demond are made supervi-
sore of highways, John Yaple is
Fence Viewer for that and the suc-
| ceeding - three years. Thereafter |
these names do not appear; they
are already removing to Danby
(North), county of Tioga, three
miles south, where they became the |
| first settlers of the new town. Peter |
'Hinepaw soon leaves for Aurora,

‘and from there to the Niagara and
the new West. _
The leader of the flrst expedition

for the “Flats” in 1788, Jonathan
Woodworth, has recently moved up
from the cabin at Puff's to .the
town square by the future court
house. He is appointed vrst sur-
veyor of the new town, McDowell
is poundmaster., Later, in 1799, as
justice he performs his vrst mar-
riage, John McLallan and Mary
King of Tremansvillee The {first
school in a log schoolhouse, was
begun in 1802 by Stephen Wood-
worth. -
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Jamary 30, 1845, to Orlo Horton, of Covert, Seneeca County, N.Y.

Nehimish “oodworth was born in New London, Connecticut, on June 15, 1768,
where he resided with his father, Captain Jonathan Woodworth, until the fall
of 1723 when they removed to Kingston Wyoming County, Pennsylvania. Mr.
Woodworth was than at the age of fifteen years.

While at Kingston they resided near the fort and the scene of the yoming
massacrse; in dascribing that mamorable evont in the Revolution, as related
to him by the survivors of that savage massacre, he thinks that tie principal
fort was not surrendered until the day subﬂaqaent to the battle and that no
persons were murdered after the day of battle.

Mr. Woodworth alsc states,tcontrary to the statements of the Historians of
the Revolution that the forts were not burned, nor the women amd childrea and
disabled p:rsons murdered that were in the fort. He was personally acquainted
with Colonels Butler and Demmison, commanders »f the fort and he is sure that
had the above named occurrences taken place he could not have failed to have
¥nown it: he is certain of the fact from the number of widows that were in-
habitants of the place when he r:-sided there.

Early in the soring of 1788, the Woodworth family removed to the Chemung
River: In June of the same year ir. /oodworth in company witl his fethe®, and
brother Charles, together with five other nman, four on horsebaek z2nd four on
foot, Eb=rtsd on an exnloring expedition to the hezd of Cayuza lake. The com-
pany followed Sullivan's route as far as Peach Orchard on the cast side of
Senenmalake. In this route they found the bushes cub out and some of the logs
removed: at this place they found two man, one named Mast:rs, who had commenced
cutting the underbrush, and had also erected a cabin constructed of bark. These
cettlers apnearsd to have been in the country several days; here the Eamnany
stayed during the nisht,.

From Peach Orchard they traveled east and struck Halsey's Creek somewhere in
tae west:rn part of the town of Hector. They followed the stream down to Caydza
Lake and encamped for the ni:sht, on the flat nnrtheshdethf siletofsvhat is now
called Goodwin's Point.* On the following morning, one Squire Carpenter, a mili~
hraght, belonging to the cpmpany, went up the ravine and discovered the Falls,
fixing on the place as a site for a mill, but he did not return to occupy it.
The party then oroceeded south towards fhm head of the lake, going up far enough
to 2void the zullies and ravines and came in sizht of Fall Creekm from near a '
point where the old Stonme Tavern and Saw Kill now steond. Here, they halted and
gse1t down two of those on foot, to ascertain at what point the i.alst could be ¢.
¢rossed, ,

"~ These two proceeded from its mouth up to a little below where the Six Mile
Creelr forms a junction with the inlet, and nsar where the bridge is now situated,
at which nlace it was found tobbe fordable for horses, and the whole company
crossed over. The party proceeded to the foat of tlio esst 1ill, turning to the
right and then :oing aling to the foot of the south hill, crocsed Six Vile Creek
and weat south along the inlet flst as far as the “QttQ”ﬂ*lx falls, vhere the
company caided for the night under a tree near the falls, taving tiis nreecaution
on account of the mltitude of sn=te which inh:bilcd the flats., 'he flats ex=
tended from Buttermilk Falle down the inlet to where the bridge now is, along
Six )ile Creek and alonz near the east hill below the Cascadilla Creek.

The porty rem-ined here rwvo days and three nights, ex~loring the country for
four or five miles above the lucation of the fal&é bridge.

While watching their bagy-ge at 3uttermilk Falls, Ir. Woodwort: noticed a
strange horse in comvany with their horses, and ql*h uzh very 'ild succeeded
in taking it in connection with theirs. Tle took it to Newtown, now ®lmira,
and finding no ovmner, kept it for his own uss.

* Taughannock.



Leavin. their encampment at Buttermilk Falls, the party proceeded on ;?e?rf .

return, southwest to the morthwest corner of Cayuta Lake. About thr?e miles ITro
' - i thier horses

the fl-ts they perceived an old bear with three cubs, and putting th
&n motion they succeeded in treeing and killin; two of the cubs, the o er;
having fled, beinz frightened by the sound of the bells attached to their horses.
Going alons the Cayuta Lake to the southwest corner they went across to Katrenes
town(now Havana) where tiey found:two settlers and their families, named King and
“olecott. Stayinz here for the night the next day they went to Newtown Point and
the day following down the river to thier place of residence on the Chemung. On
or about the first of July = party of six, named Ricksrd Lumas, Robert McDowell,
David Swith, Joseph Smith, Charles Woodwotth and Nehimiah ‘oodworth with fdve or
si¥ horsas loaded —ith provisions and imnlewents for making hay, with two cows,
returned to the flats at the head of Cajuse lake for the ourpose so makinz hay of
the grass which covered the flats in abundance, on vhich they might keep their
cattle during the wister. They came by the same route by vhich they had returned
and foubd no mnew settlers excepting two Quakers at Katrenes town supposed to be
from Rhois Islend. They had commenced plowins up the flnts, bordering the inlet
of the Senenca lake, but as yet lived with tho former settlers. The name of one
of these was John Supole. This vas about the time of maliing the treaty between
shbdtrovenhment of New York and the six nations, and up to this time there were no
settlements bstween and arsunfl the lakes, except -t Havana and Peach Orchard,
comnenced. The party came from Eatrenes to a plzcs siice salled Puff's Tavern,
then proceeded to male hay, baving been joined by two worz men from Kin:ston,
named Isaac Demnd and Peter Hinenaw.

Comrancing at Puff's th:y collected on both flats about sixty tons of hay.
The mannsr of drawing was with a rope, doubled and attached to a horse; by this
simnle mode they conveyed their dry hay to the »nlace of stacking. The growth
vas so luxuriant that they collected in three or four wecks, suffiecient to —inter
seventy head of cattle and horses. During the time of their work they subsisted
ontthe provisions brought with them, together with the milk from their cows. Thei:
flour was from Wyordnz and their*Indian meal from Tioza Mills. WHaving: finished
their work they concealed their implements in a hollow log and started on their
return by the same route. In pas-ing Horseheads(now Fairvort) they saw the bones
of the horses, killed by Sullivan's army which gave the 0ld name of Horse-Heads
to the nlace. Yaving arrived at home the party then r2turned in October, driving
in their horses and cattle, in all amounting to about seventy head. They construc-
ted a log house at Puff's. In Novembe: they dug out a cance from a large pine .
log. Ieaving the inlet, they th&léd down the lake as far as Salmon Creek, on the
east side of the lake, where Iudlowville now stands, whare the wind left them,
Thile laying there they saw a large black bear swimming from near the mouth of the
creek across from Goodwin's point on the opposite saore. The »arty determined on
his capture, paddled to cut him off; when within about seventy peitdg the bear
c2rnged his coarse and swam towapds the boat, menacing a violent attagke The nart:
dehsimting of five nersons, having mo weapons except the pole which they had used
for a mast, and an axe, concluded, after a short cowsulitation, th:t ‘our of them
should manage the canoe vwhile the other, & man named Stevens, should strike the
bear over the head with the pole. After this, having rowed within a few rods of
the ani-z1, it vas pronosed by ir. Woodworth that they should naddle backwards
from the bsar to see if they could szscape, in case they shoald be in danger; the
experience havinyg succeeded, they approached the animal, and Stevens as “irected
strucizc the bear, vhich only impeded his progress for = moment, when he made a
soring at tle boat, »l-cing the party in most imminent danger; but as the in-
furiated animal raised himself in the water to seize upon the bow of the canoe
it impede his owbogress, while the boat remained under mction, and by this mean;
h? missed his hold by about six iaches only. The varty then escaved a short
distancey and ~gain roved with a determined resolution, and attacked him in the
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. game manner the second time; the bear fell a little farther short, and in a
few more attempts, turned and swam from his assailants. The company now rowed
up to him in pursuit, while Stevens having exchangdd the pole for the axe, struck
the bear a blow in his hinder parts with the edge, and when he returned again

in his defense, gave him another in the head vhich so disabled him, that thay
gsoon succeeded in disnatching the now dyingz animl. They towed their game, cape-
tured with the greatest danger, c-ni captured only after e more than honorables
defense on the part of Bruin, back to Salmon Cresk, and there dressed it. Thus
ended a conflict betwsen men unarmed, in a canoe easily overturned in deep water
and a furious bear, swimming as it were in his native elememt; a conflict in

in which ncne but the hardy pionser would have dared to have engaged.

The party then proceeded down the lake as far as what 1s now known as Fimrod's
Point, whers they encammed for the night. The next day they started on their re-
turn, but being struck vy a squall they créssed over to what is now called Frog
Point, where thsy remained s day and a nioht, on account of the weather; the day
fdllowing they returned to Ithaca. A short time after they started for Chemmung
gding as beforz by way of Katrene and leaving Abram Smith ths cattle. After
staying about six wesks, two weeks longer than was intended, Mr. 7oodworth and
Richard Lumas, (it beinz then in Segtember 1780) returned to the Ithaca Flats,
bringing with them four nack horses loaded with vrovisions. Baving arrived to
within a cshort distance of the house, they noticed was open, and hevingzg curiosity
to see what should occupy Smith, Lumas aporoached near the door and seeing Smith
over a smell fire frring cranberries and coream, entirely iznorant of their
approach, stepped back and having adjusted his gun, again came near the door and
fired, Smith uneasy at the longz absence of the others, and having seen Indians a=-
bout was so frightened that he almost lost his senses, but was greatly surprised
on finding them tco be his friends, although somewhat out of umpr at the fright
they had ziven him.
~ One of their horses having died in the early part of the winter, the wolves
were accustomed to frequent it at night; after failing in thair attempt to shoot
them, they at lost made a hole throush the side of the house for their gun, leveld
ing it so as to rake the carcass, shearing the wolves feeding on the evsnin: of
the same day they fired and killed an enormous wolf.

About tho gsaze time they heard a deer bawl in the night, =2nd soing out with
torches they discovered it neer the inlet , with a2 pack of wolves devoutdng the
animal though not yet dead. The volves frightened at the sizhit of the fire of
their *torches, fled and the oarty themselves killed the deer and dressed it for
their own use. They also took 2 large quantity of salmon w»ith spear, from the
inlet, of & large six= which were accustomed to =o up several miles from the lake.
In the latter vart of December they moved down to th= lower flate, and built a
cabin near whers the court Lsuse now stands. In January they were joined by
two men fro- Kingston.

In February U'r. Voodworth and Lumas set out agaln for Chemung, <oing on snow
shoes made by Hinepaw. Thsy took with them one gun, and nrovisions sufficlent
for two days, in their packs, thinking, that if they did not get throuch in that
time theoy could travel one day without, as they were sure it would n-t take but th
three days at the most. The snow was now about threse feet deep in the woods.
They left the flate about noon, having with them a dog of middling eize. Instead
of goingz by thgy vdy dhey had bzen accustomed to go and come, they followed up
the inlet, intending to take a direct course from that to the Chemung, supposing
thig to be 2 chorter route. During the aft-rnoon, they traveled eizht or ten
miles, and encamped in sight of the inlet. Th2 manner of =ncam-ing was to beat
dovn the snow by the cide of a large log with their snow shoes, where h=arlack
brush could easily be nrocured, and by this log build a fire with the wood -ut
with their tymahawke with which each were onrovided. They then made their bed by
the side of the fire of hemloclk brush, covered it ith their bags with which
they sere prgvided. On this bed they composed themselv=s for the night, covered w
with their blankets and shelyered only by the brozd canopy of heaven. They slept
scundly throush the night but found themzelves coverad by the snow, six inches
in the morning. Having gottsm up they started a fire with the feow remaining brand
that were mot éxtinsuished by the smow, but ~hile doing this, the change of the



-

| 1848- copy of letter in possession of Mr. Joel Horton of Trumansburg, Nz

1 Q-
C wm. Rappleye, one of the early settlers of this town, Says, Iegi
moved from the state of New Jersey with my Father and Family 1in the ¥y
1797 to what is now the town of Covert."
we came by the way of Albany up the iohawk river in boats througg
wood Creek, and so into the cayuga lake Landing the 15th. of May-at wha,
is now known as Kidders rerry. There were a few settlers previous to this
date, The Covert Family and a Smith Family. 0ld Mr. covert came into the
country in the year 1795, settling north of the present village of Farmer-
ville. Adrian smith had settled on lot no. 42 and Joseph smith on 32. Lir.
covert purchased his land at one dollar per acre. The Father of 1r. Rapp-
leye purchased 100 acres of Richard Smith on lot 42 at five dollars per a-
cre with a small improvement. In 1798, ir. Rappleye with two brothers pur-
chased 300 acres on lot 51 at three dollars seventy five cents per acre
and in 1799, purchased the farm of 100 acres on which he resides for five
dollars per acre. The first year he says, we suffered severly for the want
of provisions. We procured a miserable quality of wheat on the east side
of the cayuga Lake at 1 shilling per bushel, the nearest mill was Daven-
port8 grist mill three miles north of Ithaca. We were able to reach this
only by going up the lake in a small boat.The mext year we sold wheat at
the same price and in the year 1800 we raised 500 bushels which _was sold
at 6 shillings and 8 shillings per bushell: this was probably the largest
crop that had been grown in the county at that time. ir. Rappleye thinks
that the first framed house was put up in 1803 by Tunis Ccovert: During the
same year the road from Ithaca to Geneva was cut through: Up to this time
-there were a few scattertig Indians belonging $o the Seneca and Cayuga
tribes. When llr. Rappleye came to this country he was twentythree years of
age, he 1s now seventy six, retaining much of the strength and vigor of
early 1life and enjoying a large competence as the reward of his pioneer
labors.
Jonathan P. Woodworth removed to this town in the year 1797. His
Father was the first to explore this country in 1788. In the spring of the
next year he made a permanent settlement at the head of the cayuga Lake,
where Ithaca now stands. They remained here five years, during this time
they carried thelr grain to be ground at the mills on the chemung riveéer or
crushed in a mortar made from a stump which was near where the court house
now stands., In 1793 the family removed to a place a little north of Himrods
point on the east side of the Cayuga Lake. ir..7oodworth speaks of the
country as being especlally adapted to raising of wheat. A part of the two
Succeeding years jr. Woodworth spent in the western portions of this state
and Penn. carrying chain for a surveyor. Was in Buffalo in 1795- the time
of making the treaty with the six nations. It contained only one trading
houge.In the year 1797, they removed on to lot 74 in this town, purchasing
their land 9? one dgllar per acre. There were a few settlers in before them.
iggntﬁzngnNl%:;?lllvedlog ghe same lot north of present village of covert.
hhe O1d Rogd” o ybon o) e The road from Covert to Trumansburg called
! ) T S bushed out so0 as to be passable for Oxen. At that place
r. Treman had put up a small mill which he called a t111 mill without any

bolt. I¥ the year 1806 ir. “oodworth purchased the farm on lot 86 where he
now resides., |
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atmosphere was so sudden from the warmth of thef® snow covered bed, to the
fntense cold of the air that trey like to have perished. laving eaten their
breakfast, they again set out on their journey; they had gone about three
fourths of a mile when Lumas fell over a ldg and broke their compass, which he
carriad in his vocket. They now concluded to onon, and trudt to their own
experience as woodsmen, but everythinz depended on uncertatdty; it was cloudy
and their provi=isns would last them but two days; they were now ¥ery much afra i
that they should set lost and not finish thelr journey befoie theoir provisions
should be exhausted. They encamped that night as before; on the third day they
again set out hoving but little éouragejn the morning, about noon Lumas who was
shead czlled out "Keep up your courage, here is the trac- of a hunter." ‘p,
Woodworth now came up and placed his o shoe in the track znd found that it
compared with his shoe. He now believed that they had gone on 2 cirele, and
come on thelr old track and were lost. They concluded to follow the first s
stream vhich they should meet down to its mouth; they proce=dsi tvc or three
miles hen they came to a narrov pass vhers they could not get through, where
the stream vhich they were followinz ran.

They turned baclz, went a short distance, =2nd climbed up the 1hill; after they
had arrived at the top the snow blew ~nd the c-ld was intensa. Aft:r Zoing a
mile or two they again deecndddd to the creek, and shortly after again cros:ed
their bac: track/ Keeping dovm the cresk, they encampad for the ni ht with
nothinz to eat, the last »f their provisions havin: been eaten at nocn. On the
next day which was the fomnbhh day they thousht they had struck into the Susge
quehannah river above Moza Point. They folloved this cresk knowing that should
it prove to be what they supnosed, it would lead them out. About this time the
sun came oub for the first and last time during the Jjourney, th= hills on each
side were steen and slipnery, and they were obliged to wade the creek much of
the time. They had become vers tired and hungry, during ths afterncon they said
1ittle to eac!: other for an hour at a time. "Finally," said Lumas, "this dog
mist be killed, can you eat a quarter without salt or bread?" “‘codworth renlied,
"Itthink that I do not want tg do it now, let the dog llve one day longer. I
would eat it before we starve. They kent on down the stream until the next day
(the fift) towards nizht, when they came to a sugar camp, the trees of which
they found ware not tapned with the Indion hatehet. Keeping én dowm they soon
came in sight of Shepherds Mille situsted on the ereek they had been following,
thus confirming thier former dépinions, here they procured provisions, frequently
cautioningz each other against an excess of eating; they then procecded a mile
farther to the house belonzing to !r. Woodworth's father.

Thus ended theilr Journey of févs daye, through the woods ~ith notiinz to eat
for about half of that time. A}journey as perilous as an untrav:lzd wilderness
and intense cold could make it.
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¥rom Ithaca Journzl-ilawe, Way 9th, 1271

Mfred Bates Toodworth who died about tws ysare age: in Trumangburg, ¥as e
sreat egrandson to Jonathan Weodwerth who Lrousht the first white 58tt1‘f' to
Ithaca in 1768, 1In 1797 he woved to Lot 74, Town of Covart and soent the ree
meinder of hic 1ifs in that vieinity., Previcus to that He saryagd thfﬂughcut
tha ;':evr)lutif“nary q&r' anlietin LR l\"' 1773' as a2 ﬂﬂr@e&ﬂt.in Putrar ‘.EL"mgi"
ment, whick warched to Cambridgd. Re was dicchargsd whenm the eolonial a?m-
pany disbended, and at crge rowonliched as o seovad Liewicianb In D“*K““t“
ragiment, the 20th Combirontal. Anril 14, 1777 he entarsd the navy forwhich
he wae sarticularly Fistad, having bY2en a sea gaptaln 72r tauy yours,

Jonathan Farker Woodworth, zon 5f Jonathan Tandworth, wae a devout Taptist,
serving as nastor fop wmany gasrs at RSigld And innothar clirzae of the Jarsca
isssociation, In 1874 ho nurchnsed land fn Tlj=ses naap ?iilaw Oreaic, which cope
etituten part of tho £ prv later nwned by his son David,gend which sfteridds
death bscame in turn, the nroperty of his saon, Alfrad Be Tihodworth, whe owned it
at the tims of Lile dsath, ' -

Alfrad Bates ¥oodworth was born on this faem Warch 15, 1636, the 'mly som. of
Devid and Betsey J. Bates Voodworth, Ue had thres cistors, Susam, Venpy and Mary,
Mary, now VYps, Very Allen, 1z tha only ems Idvine, A1frad B, Woodvorth wae of
dietiniuiehed Colonisl ancastry., Ths Pfrurder of the Arsrican brench' of 'the femily
Walter, came from Kent, inglund, to Flymooth, -lieee, . {n 1653 and 4n LG5 gattled
in Scituate, Mass. At ths time of hile death dn 1686, a som, Herjamin, chenged to
Tordworth the 4nsliah spalling Woodward, #hich nere f: t4318 o ha dirived £rém tha
Joodwards of the Hundred Holls in the reden af Advard Lie Vicet,

AlTred Bates docdworth's sducetisn was gcquirted in fha dlaErict fCtool nesrby,
rineip=lly hs attended the Iiiwen Acadewmy wshare ha ewmlatusd tha couree in sur-
veying. Thile s yoang rem hz ideniified himaslf, wite iy Hothodist Crarch in
Jackammvills whers he =2srved ag trustee and us & wenbay 27 the Cuardpbf stemards,
“or yrars 's wag suserintsndent of fundey schoole at liuck Cresk w3til svant end in
Mite Schoolhouse at ¥illow Crask, whlch he later srdonized, Later, aftor roving
to Trizcanshurg, e comtinund to sapoart the elurch, aiving frasly of kis time snd
™oy, A1) cavaeanse tondng +ewppd atyia tattaor-ant Had Lie gundort, The tamper-
Anca canse, sodecielly, lLe espouged with untiring dewniiin, jand Ffor y8urras e ghowed
hie aporoval of the Salvation Army by esnfribullng 4o its various posts  After goling
te Trunanszburg to 1iva he earvad a long tims on the t.wn board and in 1974 he was
3lectad to the county Board of Fapervisors Trow Ulytses angd wng the Tart surviveor
0f that brerd, which was incmp ag bhe most rerarkable in rary weys, which has ever
sarved Tompklins County, 7The ather renbers wire U, K, Yeda, Drydem; 5. Baveniport,
Howfisld; C.i. Wattles, Caroline; ' D.1. Surt, Ithaea; J. Hawee, cnairman, Danby;
J.L. Baker, clerk: V.B. Cross, Grateom; J. M. loodbury, lineing: Ubenazar Havong,
anTiglad,

Yr. Wocdwortk was warrdied Decarbvar 18, 18487, to Slara Fiehols, gaughter of Lev,
Sarmel Hickols, whe wns a daseaniant of tha enrlisat seitlers in Enston andg vicinity,
‘urviving hinm are two feugthtere, ¥re. Anna Y. Btaniss, end Wigs Iula ?aedworth
and a grandson, Al fred Phad¥esth Sturlse, of Yrao AELUrg,

An interssting story of the azrly tletery and settlonsnt of #fe¥ern Jew York, =as
relatad by Hahomiah Toodworth snd got dewe Uy Tarvay Deniwon, eontaing the following:
Wshemiah Hoodw rth was beym June 15th, 1768, la Haw London, Conn,., wiesas he lived
with hie athar until tha fall nf 1732, wron thay waved to Ringeatown, Tyowing
E;u:iy,ﬁya. Miile ?t xingfzrfn ﬁhe? l?vg&'naac Yha Kive stown £a¢t 'mdtihe sesne
:;1ﬁd?rri;$t:§ Td?”?ﬁ?ﬂ.‘-lﬂ -?acrigipg u?mt vwmﬁrablﬁ 2yt of the Hayolution ag
G324 uo pim by the saryivors, he thinkstths srinaisal “ort was not gurroundsd mtil
the (ay Taokequent to tha Yatils endg that se ILEONE Ware surdarad sfiay the day of
bettle.. lr. docdworth aiso ¥9ys, eoatrary to the statament of the historiane of tae
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Raynlutiwn, that the forta wars Sob Lapusd nor tas zomen and children and
disanlad varsons that were inm ths Tort wasvacred, He was sersimally scquaiatedw
with colonsla Butler and Denieon, comvandars of ths fork, and ie sure that hed
thz ahove neenad oeenrranees faken nlacs he osuld not have failed to lnow it

Ho alse is certaln of tha et Trove the aurbaer of vidows who weps iababitsnts

of t¥xt plece vhen Er, Jeodwortl: llvad in Vyuring erunty,

Baviy In the soréng of 1788 the i 2worts Tamily moved to thz Chevung rivar,
end in Jume of the sene year MNr. Yoofworth, in comoany wigh his father pnd brother
and Tive othar osreonsg, four »n horseback sad oar on feol, started on an ex-
ploring ezpedition to the hwad -7 Cayuge Laks, Thay “ollowed Sullivan's rouls as

far as Fe.ch Orchard on the saszt dosel of Lensng Zaks, (n this rosd thaee fhund
the baehee cut out ard eowa of tha lofe ras ved., At Fesch Urchard tiay found two
man, ons by the pars of Magher, who %ad somuencad cutbing osut ths undsrbrush snd hé

had erscted & cabin of bark.

Thars the parly re—ained ovar aight and than braveled east and atruck Halsey'e
Cresk somswhere in the westorn sart of the Iowa of HUsctor. Thay followed this @
strasm down Cayugs Lake and carn:d for ths nifht an the north 28de of shat s now
Immm 28 Goedwin's point. m the f2llc=ing moraing one S:ulrs Carventsr, a willa-
wright. bolonging to the zarty, =wevt wp 2 ravine end dissovered Tauchannoek Walls,
fixing on a sl1te for 2 will, wat le did not return to ccousy 1t.

Theparty than droceaded south toward ths hoad of e lake, gving far smough ap
tno avold gullics and ravinss, and cave in slzht of Fall Cresk, neur wheras the old
mill amd stone tavern now etand., There tasy zant two of the sarty oo oot to ase
certain at what oint the inlst conld be croesed. Thess two nrocesded Tror ite
Wtk we o & YRl n Bola= whars iy Y& Ores) Sorrz a junctisn with the inlet
and n=ar whare the brifge is now situsted, at which olace it was found to be ford-
8bla for horses, and tha comosny nasged over, Thay than oroceaded to ths foot of
saet 7111, and turming to the right, geing along the foot of gouth Hill, thay

rogeed Six VMile Crealr epd went south along the flats se far sae Butiormill Falla,
whzes they sncarm:d for ths nizht under a tree naar ths falle, Thie Tiat axtended
from Butterrillc ¥alls dewa ths inlet to vhere ths btridge now ie, z2lone Eix Mile
Orack and nsar uast Hill below Caecadilla Oreek. The narty remained lLizrs thrae days
exnloring the cruntry for f-ur oc five 7ilse above the inlak,

While watching the DLggoge wbl wutbsimiia Lalls, wi. nevawolba sed = sbranga norse
which he captured =itk 1ittle trautio :nd teck it to Haewl-wm (now dlmira) and finding
nn owmer rept it for hle sarvice. Leaving the encampment et Butterrilk 7alle, the
party rrocesdad to return, a-inc s~uth o ths scuthwast cormer of Ssyuga Taks,

About thres milas from the flate thay saw an old bear and threage cubs and euccasdsd
in trseing gné killing two of the cubs. The cther bsars Tlad, friguteanad bty the bdlls
on tha horses.

Going along ths Csyusz loke to tha southwest cormar, thay oroesed to Katherine's
Povm (now Mavana), vhers thay found tw: gettlers nawad King and Wo-leott, with their
farrilies. The next dey thsy werlt t- Y¥ew Town {now F1mira) woint, =r1 tha f1lowine
dey down tha river o thair homa on the Chemung,

fn or 2bout Jaly 1 a party of gip, navad diehardeson, Sguirs, Hobarts, Hedole,
David and Josaph Smith, snd Charles sud Feberilah Jordworth, with five or six horses
loadad withmrovisicns zpd fm-lesspte for nakivg hey, and tuwe cowg, ratucrned to the
hard of Cayuga Luky, teo make hay From thae gress #hich eovarsd tis Tlate with an
abundant growth, on which they wisht keeo their cetile during the winter, They ree
turnsd cvar the sarne routa, Findlne b newvaabdildres, sxcant two Qusrere at Kathse
rinels town zupovssd to be from Rhods Island., Jne wos John Supsle.  Thsy bad
commamesd plovghlng wn ths Mlats mt tha nead of Sonwca Laxs, tul 1iywad =ith the fom
formar setilazre. This waa about the tlrs 0of tha treaty =ith thes govermrant of Ned
Yorl: and the Siz Fations, and uap to thle btime thors wors no ssitlsrcnts baztwsen or
around tli2 lakaea ezeept Tavinz apnd Feash: Orchard,

Pan oaprty core from Katierine's Tom to & tluse culled Puff's laverm,“thrse miles
from Tthaeca, in ond day with ne incidsnt wortiy of nntice, Thay rorocsads to meke



having baen joined by two men from Delawars, Isaac Drummond and Peter Hyme-
baugh., They cut ab-ut 60 toms fo hay, They subsisted on thB_PrO?isigns e
brought with thsm from Wyoming and milk from their cows, flour fr?m. Jeming
and Indlan meal from Tioga Mille, ®inishing their work they his tﬁeir‘toola

in a hollow log and started the return trip over the same route. Paaflng ]
Horeshoads, now Falrport, they saw tha bonss of the horses killed by Sulllven®s
army, which pgave the name of Worsshosads to ths vlzce. “

The perty arsived homs in Jctober and bullt 2 loz cabin 2t Fuff's. In hovawber
tho, dué out = canoo Trom 2z largs pins log and sailed dwon the shore of tlre 13k8 o
9:d -rm Oreak om the asst eida, Whils 1ylng thars the suied a big bear swimming
apvnce tha Inke towarde Oandwinla Matnd | Mhay Agtaerminzd to cadnturs the bear
and ild so after a lon end tirirg striggle, fighting him from ths cance, during
which they wers nssrly cepalzed 2 nunber of Limesz, but they finally esuwcceedad in
dispateching bruin with an axs,

The carty then went down ths lake to Eiamrod'e Point, whers they sncarped “or
the night, 7hs next é;:y they startsd back, ran into & squall and ware forced to
goend the night and annther day 2t Prog Point. They ther returned ic Ithaca and
soon aftur startad for Chemung, »oing as bafore and leaving Abrar Hnith with the
eettle,

Six weosks later, in Deccubur, 1768, wmi's #0ulFOrth ould alchald Luces returned
to the Ithaca flatz %0 ses Liow Binith was epending his time, they crznt up da him
log cabin to find him frying cranberriss and creem., iying off their gun, they
nearly frightened him sengslsas, as Lie hed sesn Indians about the sreviocus day,

The latter nart of Dacamber they moved down to the lower {lat and built a
cabir near where the ~1ld court liousa nov stands, In January they were joined Ly
two won from Delaware. In February, Mr., Woocdruff end ¥r. Lucas sst oubt again for
Chomung, traveling or snowshoBs rmade by Peter Hymesbaugh. They lost thsir way and
wandered in 2 cireles for sevaral days after lhey broks thair compsee. Their food
wag sboul exheusted, and just as they were malcing uwp their ninds to sat tleir dog
Loy came vul into a clearing near Shepherd's Crask, the cutiet of Cayuga Lake.
reaping on down strear, they cave to Shepherdls mills where they precursd provis-
ions. They ther went = mile farther on to the home of Mr. Woodworth!e father.

Thus snded thsur jrurmey of fivs daye throuzh the woods with nothing to sat for
about nal? the tlme, a j-orney as overilous am an untravsled wildarmess and interse
cold could make it.



